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Resource International
ATTN:  Scott Courtney
9560 Kings Charter Drive
Ashland, VA 23005 

RE:	Wood Park Court Multitenant Warehouse - 2nd Submittal
	SPR # 4-19
	E&S # 5480
	PZ # 19-30000014
	BP # 19-09900033


Dear Mr. Courtney,

	The Department of Public Works has reviewed the above captioned site plan submission and would like to offer the following comments; Please note, these comments have been submitted based on the requirements of the following Virginia State Laws and Hanover County Codes: Chapter 10, Article V, Stormwater Management, Chapter 10, Article I, Erosion and Sediment Control, Code of Hanover; Chapter 10, Article II, Chesapeake Bay Preservation, Code of Hanover; Chapter 12, Floodplain and Drainage Control, Code Of Hanover; and the Hanover County Drainage Design Handbook (February 12, 2014):
(ALL PREVIOUSLY MADE COMMENTS IN ITALICS)

1. The Erosion and Sediment Control (E&S) inspection fee is based on the amount of land disturbance certified on the cover sheet of the plan (6.26 acres [note limit of 10 acres max]).  Please note that the E&S fee for this project must be paid prior to issuance of the land disturbance permit.  The fee has been calculated to be $2,527.56. This fee is based on the current fee rate of $612.00 minimum base fee, plus $306.00 per acre ($3,672.00 maximum fee). You must provide the cashier with the project tracking number to facilitate the payment process. Please submit payment to the cashier located in the Commissioner of Revenue Office.  Do not submit payment to the Department of Public Works. PLEASE NOTE: Any increase / decrease in the proposed acreage of land disturbance will change the aforementioned fee.  Also, since the E&S inspection fees are due at time of plan approval, any plan approved after the date on which a fee base increase is enacted will be subject to that increase. 

2. An E&S bond will be required prior to issuance of the Land Disturbance Permit.  The bond amount is determined based on the amount of E&S controls required for the project.  The bond has been calculated to be $38,909.00.  This bond amount is subject to change if E&S quantities change with project design.  The bond may be in the form of cash, irrevocable letter of credit, or surety and must be on the County format (please check with your lender to ensure they have the correct forms).  The bond form (cash, ILC, or surety) must be completed, notarized and submitted to this department with the bond amount prior to any land disturbing activities on site.  E&S bonds will be held by this department until the site work is complete and there is a minimum 85% established healthy vegetation over all non-hardened or denuded surfaces.

3. It appears that Water Quality requirements are being met by purchasing credits.  A bill of sale will need to be provided before a land disturbance permit can be issued.

4. Provide an updated copy of your “VSMP General Permit Registration Statement - Construction Activity Stormwater Discharges (DCR01)” with 6.26 acres of disturbance.   Hanover is the authority for issuance of these permits.  A separate payment will have to be made to Virginia DEQ at the time of permit certification by the County.  We will provide you notification when the permit has been certified. 

5. Please submit two copies of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that meets the requirements of Part II A of the VSMP Construction General Permit (9 VAC 25-880). A review of this document will be performed in order to ensure that the SWPPP meets regulatory requirements.  We will need these two copies of the SWPPP before a land disturbance permit can be issued.  A SWPPP template is available from the review engineer upon request. 

6. Please fill out the attached Project Information Tracking Sheet (PITS) and include it with the plan resubmission.

7. It appears a public drainage easement will need to be established to provide through drainage for the runoff from all public drainage.  Additionally, the Hunter’s Ridge Industrial Park subdivision plan needs to be amended to include the easement through the Hanover County Planning Department.  Public easements must be minimum 20 feet in width and executed on County format.  The drainage easement must be labeled as a “public drainage easement” on the site plan with deed book and page number clearly referenced adjacent to the easement.

8. It appears a letter of permission will be needed from the owner of the parcel for access and grading at the outfall.

9. Revise drainage areas to include the following:
· Drainage to existing waterway to the west of proposed warehouse (C-16)
· Drainage of all flow into site from offsite (C-16)
· Adjust line on south side of drainage area 10 (C-16)
· Adjust line on west side of drainage area 7 and 8 (C-16)
· Remove extra line in drainage area 8 on the northeast side (C-16)
· Show drainage area to each sediment trap (C-4)

10. Provide details and calculations for the following ditches:
· Ditch/Retaining Wall along north side of buildings 1 and 2
· Ditch to drop inlet A
· Ditch around the southeast corner of building 4

11. Revise drainage calculations on sheet C-14 with the following:
· Drainage area for inlet 5 should be 0.35 acres
· Drainage area for inlet 7 should be 1.22 acres
· Drainage area for inlet A not provided
· Under calculations for the 10-year storm, point 5 to point 4 drainage area should be 0.35 acres

12. Ensure the following are within the Limits of Disturbance (LOD):
· Diversion Dike (DD) in southeast corner on sheet C-4
· Grading along south side of outfall on sheet C-5
· Safety Fence (SAF) around Hunter’s Ridge Industrial Park sign on sheet C-5
· Rip-rap at southwest corner of outfall (pipe outlet area) on sheet C-5 and C-9

13. Provide the amount of Safety Fence (SAF) in the Erosion Control Quantities list on sheet C-20.

14. Please update the Stormwater Management statement (Water Quality Impact Assessment) and Stormwater Runoff Considerations statement (Erosion Control Narrative) to reflect current plan design on sheet C-20.

15. Please add the following to the Erosion Control Details on sheet C-21:
· Inlet Protection (IP)
· Outlet Protection (OP)
· Safety Fence (SAF)

16. Provide an analysis of the downstream capacity for 2-year permissible velocity and full development to outfall.  In addition, show all analysis points on plan.  Please include the following areas in analysis:
· Trap Ditch Outfall
· Lewistown Outfall

Channel Protection and Downstream Issues
1. Please provide a drainage area map that clearly shows the location of all Permissible Velocity analysis points.  Please clearly delineate pre and post-development drainage areas to each analysis point on the plan.

2. Please provide pre and post-development 2-year velocity and depth at all natural channel analysis points.  Please reference the Hanover County Drainage Handbook for permissible velocities based on soil type.  If non-erosive velocities cannot be achieved, then the 2-year post-developed peak discharge at each outfall will need to be reduced to the 2-year pre-developed peak discharge using the pre-developed drainage area and a land cover of Woods in Good Condition.










If you should have any questions concerning the detailed comments made during the review of your plans, please give me a call at 365-6181.  When resubmitting plans, please return a copy of these comments with a note stating how/where each comment was addressed.

								Sincerely,


								Nicole Onellion, E.I.T.
								Civil Engineer I
								Department of Public Works

Cc:  	MTL Development, LLC
	ATTN: David Martin
	11250 Central Drive
	Ashland, VA 23005 

	Megan Dalzell, Planning Department
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